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December 1, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
and Citizens of the City of Dawsonville:

It is our pleasure to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Dawsonville for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014 to the Mayor, the City Council, and the citizens of Dawsonville. Georgia Code requires
that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete

set of audited financial statements.

Within this report management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has established for
this purpose. Since the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objestive Is to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Georgia Code requires an annual audit by independent certified public accountants, The City selected Alexander,
Almand & Bangs, LLP to perform the annual independent financial statement audit for fiscal year 2014. The audit
issued an unmaodified opinion for the 2014 fiscal year which is included within this document.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This lotter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The City of Dawsonville’s MD&A can be found immediately following the auditor’s report in the financial section of

this report.
Profile of the Government

The City of Dawsonville, the county seat of Dawson County, is located in the foothilis of the Northeast Georgia
Mountains, approximately 50 miles northeast of Atlanta. The population of Dawsonville is estimated to be 2,5636.
Dawsonville was incorporated December 10, 1859 and was named after William C. Dawson, a compiler of the
laws of Georgia and commander of a brigade in the Creek Indian War of 1836. Dawson also served in both
houses of the state legistature and in Congress before the Civil War.

The government of the Gity of Dawsonville is vested in a City Council composed of a mayor and four councit
members. Each member serves a four year torm of office and there are no fimits on the amount of terms they
may serve. The Clty has the authority to levy property tax on both real and personal property located within its

boundaries.

The City provides many services including a water and sewer utility, solid waste collection, cemetery setvices,
maintenance of highways and streets, planning and zoning, recreational facilities, and tourism event sponsorship.

The Downtown Development Authority of Dawsonville (DDA), a legally separate entity, was created by the City in
1996 to stimulate and sustain economic development in Downtown Dawsonville, The DDA works closely with
downtown businesses and city leaders to ensure continued growth and invesiment into the downtown area while

protecting our history and providing for the future.



The City of Dawsonville develops and adopts a balanced budget for each fiscal year. The City Clerk develops
this document which is submitted to the Mayor and City Council for adoption. The City includes all governmental
funds (General, SPLOST, and Hotel/Motel Tax), enterprise funds (Water/Sewage, and Solid Waste), and
component units {Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority) in its budgeting process. Each fund is
budgeted at the line item level but monitored at the legal level of control which is at the depaitment tevel. The
legal level of control is the level at which the budget must be balanced.

Local Economy

The economy within the Gily of Dawsonville for 2013 has seen a gradual improvement from previous years.

Dawsonville is the only municipality focated in Dawson County, situated in Northeast Georgia on two major state
highways, Highway 53 and Highway 9, with Highway 400 in the County that opens a gateway for the Atlanta
suburbs to expand north, This has been a major contributor to the growth of this community.

North Georgta Premium Outlet Mall is the largest employer in the County employing 1,000 to 1,200 employees,
and Gold Cresk Foods located in the City comes in second employing 590 employees.

The 2610 U.S. Census showed the City of Dawsonville grew more than 139% between 2000 and 2010, from
1,059 residents to 2,536. This poputation growth continues to impact all fevels of service needs.

The housing and banking crisis, which halted the development within the City in 2011, has improved and
developers resumed construction resulting in an increase in building permits over the past 2 years,

Farmington Woods has completed construction and opened their 74 unit apartments. A building permit was
issued to the Assisted Living Genter that will house 25 beds,

The City does not levy ad valorem taxes presently and historicaily. The City has maintained adeguate revenue
streams necessary for service delivery without the assessmeant of a Cily property tax.

Labor Force Data {Dawson County) Building Permits (City) Population
Employed  Unemployment Rate RBesidential Commerclal Dawsonville  Dawson County
2013 11,344 6.7% 15 82 2,466 22,686
2012 11,397 7.7% 15 81 2,294 22,422
2011 11,306 9.0% 3 80 2,319 22,459
2010 11,367 9.8% 14 84 2,390 22,330
2009 11,180 9.8% 14 83 1,617 22,555

Long-term Finaneial Planning

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is $ 1,864,596 to provide cash flow throughout the yearand as a
buffer against unforeseen events.

The Enterprise Fund consolidated seven water and sewer loans Into a $4.675 Series 2014 Bond. A Capital
Improvement Plan has been set up that consists of the water and sewer tap revenus to cover improvementis
made to the water and sewaer infrastructure.

Relevant Financial Policies
In March of 2014, Standard and Poor's assigned a credit rating of “AA” (stable) to the City.

The Council adopted a Financial Policy Manual as a guide to the management of the finances of the Gity on May
5, 2014. These policies address fund balances, the use of one-time revenues, issuance of debt, purchasing and
procurement, cash and investment management, accounting practices, and water and sewer billing. These
policies were designed to provide assurance that the Cily is able to meet its fiduciary responsibility to its citizens.
The Council reviews and updates these policies on an ongoing basis.




Major Initiatives

The City, through the DDA, purchased a 14.2 acre tract of property behind City Hall to create Main Street Park.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The City will submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) to the Governmental Finance Officers
Association's (GFOA) Cettificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting reward program for the
first time in 2014, In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement the government is required tc publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

The preparation of the CAFR has been accomplished through the dedicated efforts of the entire staff assisting the
City Clerk in conjunction with the external audit firm Alexander, Almand & Bangs, LLP. Appreciation is also
expressed to the Mayor and Gouncil for their support and providing the resources needed to deliver quality
services for Dawsonvllle's citizens.

Respectiully submitted,

Vit Spoes

Bonnie Warne
City Clerk
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ALEXANDER ALMAND & BANGS, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

acember 1, 2014

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Dawsonville
Dawsonville, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and the reiated noies to the financiai statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this inciudes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control reievant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether dus to fraud or etror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to cbfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial .

statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial staterments, whather due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenass of the entity's internal conirol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activitles, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

302 Bradford 5t. NW Gainesville, GA 30501 : (770) 536-0511 : Fax (770} 536-7565  alexanderalmand.com
Members of: The Georgia Society of Certified Public Accountants  The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion on
pages 3 through 10 and Defined Benefit Retirement Plan Schedule of Funding Progress on page 45 be presented to
supplement the basic financial staternents. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance, :

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Dawsonville, Georgia's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual non-maijor
fund financlal statements, the Schedule of Projects Constructed with Special Sales Tax Proceeds, the Schedules of
Functional Allocations for the Water, Sewer and Sanitation fund, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position budget and actual for the Water, Sewer and Sanitation fund and the statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual non-major fund financlal statements, the Schedule of Projects Constructed with Special
Sales Tax Proceeds, the Schedules of Functional Allocations for the Water, Sewer and Sanitation fund and the Schedule
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position budget versus actual for the Water, Sewer and Garbage fund are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly fo the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financlal statements themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United Siates of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financiai
statements, the Schedule of Projects Constructed with Special Sales Tax Proceeds, the Schedules of Functional
Allocations for the Water, Sewer and Garbage fund, and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position budget versus actual for the Water, Sewer and Garbage fund are fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the baslic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1 2014, on our
consideration of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report Is an integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
Dawsonville, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Alexander, Almand & Bangs, LLP
Gainesville, Georgia
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Dawsonvilie (the “Gity") provides this Management Discussion and Analysis as prescribed by the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34). This narrative overview and analysis of the City of
Dawsonville’s financial activities is for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013, Please consider this information in

conjunclion with the accompanying Basic Financial Statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights of the year include the following:

« The assets of the City of Dawsonville excoeded its liabilities at the close of the year ending June 30, 2014 by
$ 12,246,034 (net position).

» The City's net position increased by $ 194,105 for the year ending June 30, 2014 from the prior year. Of this
amount, an increase of $ 346,863 was associated with governmental activities and a decrease of $ 162,758 with
business-type activities. In the government activities, the City continued progress on installation of sidewalks
funded through SPLOST IV contribulions. .

e The City's net investment in capital assets, decreased $ 258,535 or 3.1% for the year ending June 30, 2014,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Dawsonville’s basic financial
statements. The City's basic financial statements include three components: 1) Government-Wide Financial Statements,
2) Fund Financial Statements, and 3) Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. These components are described below:

Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Cily of

Dawsonville’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the city's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reponted as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
tha financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. The statement of net position combines and consolidates
governmental funds’ current financial resources wilh capital assets and long-term obligations,

The statement of activities presenis information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in

future flscal periods

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supporied by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues {(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the City of Dawsonvills include general government, public safety, highways and streets and other charges. The major
business-type activity of the City includes the water and sewer system,

The government-wide financial statements include a legally separate Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority, a
component unit of the Cily. Financial information for the component unit is blended into the Cily's financial statements.

-3.



Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
spacific activities or objectives. The Cily, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Dawsonville can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. These funds also include the biended

component unit.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund
financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term

financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activilies
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison

between the two.

The Cily maintains three governmental funds — the general fund, a capital projects fund and a hotel-motel tax special
revenue fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The general fund is considered a major fund, while
capital projects funds, cemetery fund and the hotel-motel tax fund are considered non-major governmental funds.

The City of Dawsonville adopted a full year budget for the period ending June 30, 2014 for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary funds
The City of Dawsonville maintains one proprietary enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions

presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Information is presented separately in
the proprietary statement of net position and the proprietary statement of revenues, axpense and changes in net position
for the water, sewer and sanitation fund, which Is considered a major proprietary fund.

Permanent Funds
Permanent funds account for resources that are legally restricted to allow the earnings (and not the principle) to be usad to

support the governments programs such as cemeteries, libraries, parks and scholarships.

Notes to the financial statements
Notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in government-wide and the fund financial statements. The notes can be found immediately following the fund
financial statements.

Other information

Required supplementary information is reported in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes.




GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30, 2014, the Cily's assets exceeded liabilities by $ 12,246,034, By far the largest portion of the City's net
position reflects its net investment in capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. Capital assets are used to provide services 1o citizens and they are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in capital assets are reported net of refated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed io
repay this debt must ba provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to fiquidate

these liabilities.

City of Dawsonville's Net Position

Businhess Business
Gowt'l © Govtll Type Type
Total Total Activities Activities Actlvities Activities
6/30/2014 6/30/2013 06/30/14 06/30/13 06/30/14 06/30/13
Current assets $ 4183562 $ 3,620,986 $§ 2,196798 § 1817605 § 1,986,771 & 1,812,381
Other assels - 161,730 - - - 161,730
Capital assels 14,464,410 15,005,880 4,066,651 4,180,589 10,397,858 10,825,291
Total assets 18,647,979 18,797,596 6,263,349 5,998,194 12,384,630 12,799,402
Long-temm Habllities 5,787,656 6,182,957 1,337,797 1,451,562 4,449,859 4,731,395
Other current llabilities 614,289 562,710 200,663 168,606 413,626 394,104
Total llabllities ‘ 6,401,945 6,745,667 1,538,460 1,620,168 4,863,485 5,125,499
Net position:
Net investment in capitai assets 8,356,097 8,605,117 2,623,723 2,625,541 5,732,374 5,979,676
Restricted for cemetery 190,388 196,950 190,388 196,950 - -
Resiiicted for tourism 254 168 254 168 - -
Reslricted for capilal projacts 10,765 18,080 10,765 18,080 -
Restricted for debt service - 217,758 - - - 217,758
Unrestricied 3,688,630 3,013,858 1,889,758 1,637,287 1,788,771 1,476,569
Total net position $ 12,246,034 $ 12,051,920 § 4724889 § 4,378,026 § 7.521,1 45“ $ 7_,&‘23@03_




City of Dawsonville's Changes in Net Position (continued)

Revenues:

Program revenues.
Charges for services
Operating grants & contiibutions
Capital grants & contributions

General revenues;
Taxes

Galn {loss) on sale of assets
Interest

Total Revenues

Expenses:

Generat goveinmant

Publle safety

Highways and streets

Culture/recieation

Planning and zoning

Housing and development

Interest on long-term debt

Bond Issuance cost

Water and sewer

Total Expensa

Increase In net position
before transfers

Transfers

Changs In nat position

Net position - beginning of year
Prior period adjustment

Net posiiion - ending of year

Business Business
Govt'l Govt'l Type Type
Total Total Activities Activities Activitles Activities
6/30/2014 6/30/2013 06/30/14 063013 06/30/14 06/30/13
$ 1,316,935 $ 1,293,841 3 112,106 171,863 $ 1,204,829 $ 1,121,978
9,893 1,000 9,993 1,000 - -
120,829 482,523 16,629 16,523 104,300 466,000
1,250,558 1,255,305 1,260,658 1,255,305 - -
6,216 5,526 2,243 2,573 3,873 3,953
2,704,631 3,039,195 1,391,528 1,447,264 1,313,102 1,591,331
682,148 708,717 682,148 706,717 -
- 80,000 - 80,000
221,424 265,141 221,424 265,141 -
1,933 5,641 1,933 5,641 -
97,632 63,448 97,632 63,448 -
11,577 23,667 11,577 23,667 -
214,063 245,981 29,952 39,202 184,111 208,779
134,453 - - 134,453 -
1,147,286 1,153,945 - - 1,147,296 1,153,845
2,510,626 2,544,540 1,044,666 1,183,816 1,465,860 1,360,724
124,105 484,655 346,863 263,448 {152,758) 231,207
194,105 494,655 346,863 263,448 (152,758) 231,207
12,051,929 11,482,815 4,378,026 4,024,578 7,673,903 7,458,237
74,459 - 90,000 - {15,541}
$ 12,246,034 12,051,929 $ 4,724,883 4,378,026 $ 7,521,145 $ 7,673,903




Revenues by Source;

Government Activifies - 6/30/14

Business-Type Activities - 6/30/14

Char Taxes
1% 56%

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Changes from the City's General Fund originai budgset to the final budget are detaifed in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balance — Budget and Actual along with a compatison to actual activity for the year

General
Governmenl Interest
1% Plannir!g and Misc. Earned
. Zening 289 0%
Highways 204 Garbage
and Streefs Collections
19 7% Water
Interest ———————"""£3 Charges
Eamed i Sewer 37%
0% : Charges
6% Water and
. Sewer Taps
Other Taxes ng?ég ?gg" 8%
34% 5605
Government Activities - 6/30/13 Business-Type Activities - 6/30/13
R i General
ecreaiion Governmant
0% 9% Planning and Mi Interest
Zonig 'gj’ Earned
Highways 3% 9 Garbage 0%
and Stresis Collections Water
% 6% Charges
Interest /8 ‘ Public Safely Sewer 28%
Earnad 0% Charges
0% / 33%
\ Waler and
Local Option Sewer Taps
Sales Tax 29%

ended June 30, 2014. Fiscal management and expenditure control helped keep the budget in balance.

General Fund revenues of $ 1,367,980 were more than budgeted revenues of $ 1,224,000 for the year ended June 30,
2014, General Fund expenditures were less than budgeted. With tofal appropriations of $ 1,224,000 the City actually

spent $ 1,002,901 or $ 221,099 less than budgeted, for the year ended June 30, 2014,



Expenditures by Function:

Governmental Activities - 6!30114_!_-
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Housing Rec and Strests
1% 21%
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Pianning . 6%
and Zoning
9%
Debt

Semvice
3%

Business - Type Activities - 6/30/14

Interest Parsonal
22% Services and

Benefils
17%

Supplies 4 o
) urchase
N ___and Contract
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Debt

Somvice Public
3% Safaly
7%

Goneral
Gov.
60%

Business - Type Activities - 6/30/13

Interast Personal
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32%
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0%

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The issues facing the national economy correlate with the City's local economy. Permitting for new home or commercial
building construction has turned around. The City strives to be good stewards of the revenues received through fiscal
management and expenditure control using a minimal amount of reserved funds to help keep the budget in balance. The

City plans to maintain a conservative fiscal position while the economic conditions dictate.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 the City had $ 20,012,114 and $ 19,980,171 invested in a variety of capital assets, as in
the schedule below. Adjustments for depreciation are $ 573,418 and $ 611,505 for the years ending June 30, 2014 and
2013. Adjustments for accumulated depreciation are $ 5,547,704 and $ 4,974,291 for the years ending June 30, 2014

and 2013. Further detail on capital assets is provided in the notes to the financial statements.




Capital Assets at Year-end

Business Business
Govt'l Govt'l Type Type
Total Total Activitles Activities Activities Actlvitles
6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2013
Land $ 3,343,989 $ 3,343,989 3 410,802 410,802 $ 2,933,187 3 2,933,187
Arifacts 49,751 49,751 49,751 49,751 - -
Consiruction in progress 68,614 243,753 - - 68,614 243,759
Bulldings 3,537,289 3,637,289 3,306,824 3,306,824 230,465 230,465
Improvements 34,365 34,365 34,365 34,365 - .
Vehlcles 131,655 108,040 110,171 86,556 21,484 21,484
Equipment 471,373 471,373 228,137 228,137 243,236 243,236
Infrastructure 1,755,081 1,732,317 1,755,061 1,732,317 - -
Water and Sewer System 9,701,701 8,540,972 - - 9,701,701 9,540,872
Sewer Treatment Plant 218,316 918,316 - - 918,316 918,316
Total $ 20,012,114 $ 19,980,171 3 5,895,111 5,848,752 14,117,003 14,131,419
The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets:
Businass Business
Govt'l Govt'l Type Type
Total Total Activities Activitles Activities Activities
6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 613072013
Beginning Balance: $ 19,980,171 $ 19,678,882 3 5,848,752 5,608,687 $ 14,131,419 $ 13,970,195
Addittons:
Land - 90,000 - 90,000 -
Construction In Progress - 168,440 - - 168,440
Buildings - - - - -
Vehicles 23,615 - 23,615 - - -
Equipment - 30,387 - 30,387 -
Infrastructure 22,744 167,388 22,744 167,388 -
Waler and Sewer System 160,729 - - - 160,729 -
Dispositions: -
Construction In Prograss (175,145) {54,926} - (47,710) (175,145) {7,216}
Equipment - - - - - -
Infrastructure - - - - - -
Water and Sewer System - - - - -
Total $ 20,012,114 $ 19,980,171 $ 5,885,111 $ 5,848,752 $ 14,117,003 3 14,131,419

LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30, 2014, the City was fiable for long-term capital lease obligations totaling $ 1,442,828 and for revenue bond
debt totaling $ 4,675,000. As of June 30, 2013, the City was liable for long-term capital lease obligations totaling
$ 1,555,048 for revenue bond debt totaling $ 3,761,717 and municipal loans of $ 1,083,998. This is a debt reduction of
$ 282,935 from prior year. Further detail on long-term debt is provided in the notes o the financial staternents.




REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Dawscnvllle’s finances for all of Dawsonvilte's
residents, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. This financial report seeks to demonstrate the City's
accountability for the money it receives, Questions conceming any of the information provided in this report, or requests
for additional information should be addressed to the City Clerk, ¢/o City of Dawsonville, P. Q. Box 6, Dawsonville,

Georgla 30534,

-10 -



ION

f

ents

Y

fat

S

&

-
<

b

i

1

e

c

lasi

k




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assats .
Cash and cash aquivalents
Hestricted assets:
Cash and cash equlvalents
Accounts recelvable
Prepald iterns

Total current assels

Non-current asssts
Restricted assets:
Cortifioates of deposit
Capilal assels {net of acournulated depreciation)
Land and construction In prograss
Artifacts
Dapraciable, capital assets net

Tatal non-current assats

© TOTAL ASSETS

See accompanylng notes to the baslc financlal statements.

11

June 20, 2014

Primary Qovernment - 2014

Governmenital Buslness-Type

Aolivilles Activitios Total
$ 1,803,459 $ 1,778,371 § 3,581,830
207,293 89,920 297,213
142,314 95,080 237,374
43,732 23,420 87,162
2,196,798 1,986,771 4,183,569
410,802 3,001,801 3,412,603
48,761 - 48,751
3,605,998 7,396,058 11,002,068
4,066,551 _ 10,397,859 14,464,410
$ 6,263!349 $ 12,384,630 $ 18!647,979




CiTY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

Primary Government - 2014

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 87,063 $ 88,781 $ 185,844
Current portion, capital lease debt 113,600 - 113,600
Current portion, bond debt - 225,000 225,000
Customner deposits payable from restricted assets - 89,845 89,845
Total current liabilities 200,663 413,626 614,289
Non-current fiabilities
Long-term debt, capital lease 1,329,228 - 1,329,228
Long-term debt, bond debt - 4,450,000 4,450,000
Unamortized discount on bonds payable - (9,515) (9,515)
Compensated absences 8,569 9,374 17,943
Total non-current flabilities 1,337,797 4,449,859 5,787,656
Total liabilities 1,538,460 4,863,485 6,401,945
Net Position .
Net investment In capital assels 2,623,723 5,732,374 8,356,097
Restricted for cemetery 190,388 - 190,388
Restricted for tourism 254 - 254
Restricted for capital projects 10,785 - 10,765
Unrestricted 1,899,759 1,788,771 3,688,530
Total net position 4,724,889 7,521,145 12,246,034
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 6,263,349 $ 12,384,630 $ 18,647,979

<11 -



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For tha Year Ended June 30, 2014

Program Ravanues

Charges Operating
For Grants and
Expanses Services Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT o o - '
Governmental Aclivitles
Qeneral government $ 682,148 $ 84,070 $ 9,993
Highways ahd streets . . 221,424 - -
Culture/racraation 1,933 - -
Planning and zoning 97,632 28,038 -
Housing and development 11,577 - .
Interast on long term debt 29,052 - -
Total Government Activities 1,044,666 112,106 9,893
Business-Type Activilies
Water and sewer 1,465,860 1,204,829 -
Total Businass-Typs Aclivitles 1,465,860 1,204,829 -
Total-Piimary Qovernment $ 2,510,528 3 1,316,835 3 9,003
GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes: Sales
Aleoholie Beverage
Franchise
Othar
Interest eamad

See dccompanying notes to the basle financial statements,

-12.

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position
NET POSITION - baginning of yaar

NET POSITION - and of year




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net (Expense) Revenua and Changes In Net Position

Capital Grants Primary Government
and Giovernmental Business-Type
Contributions Activities Activitles Tolal

- ¢ (588085 $ - $ (598,085)
16,629 (204,795) . (204,795)
. (1,933) . (1,933)

- (69,596) - (69,596)

- (11,577) - (11,577)

- (29,952) - (29,952)
16,629 (905,938) - (905,938)
104,300 - (156,731) (156,731)
104,300 - (156,731) (156,731)
120,929 (905,938) (156,731) (1,062,669)
783,018 - 783,018

90,626 . 90,626

143,418 - 143,418

233,496 - 233,496

2,243 3,973 8,216

1,252,801 3,973 1,256,774

346,863 (152,758) 194,105

4,378,026 7,673,903 12,051,929

$ 4,724,889 $ 7,521,145 $ 12,246,034
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2014

Non-Major Total
Governmental  Governmental
General Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 1,803458 % $ 1,803,459
Rastricted assets:

Cash and cash equvialenis - 207,293 207,293
Recelvables (net, where applicable of allowance for uncollectible):

Taxes recelvable 142,102 212 142,314
Prepaid expense 43,732 - 43,732
Due from other funds 8,140 776 6,916

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,995,433 $ 208,281 $ 2203714
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 74,478 734 75,212
Salaries payable 5,073 - 5,073
interest payable 1,778 - 1,778
Deposits payable 5,000 - 5,000
Pue to other funds 776 6,140 6,916
Total liabilities 87,105 6,874 93,979
FUND BALANCE
Non-spendable:
Prepaid items 43,732 43,732
Restricted:
Permanent funds - 190,388 180,388
Special revenue funds 254 264
Capital project funds - 10,765 10,765
Unassigned: 1,864,596 - 1,864,596
Totai Fund Balances 1,908,328 201,407 2,109,735
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 1,995,433 $ 208,281 $ 2,203,714

See accempanying notes to the basic financial statements,

-13 -




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

2014
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES $ 2,109,735
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost $ 5,895,111
Accumulated depreciation (1,828,560)
Total capital assets, net depreciation 4,066,551
Certain liabilities are not due and payahle in the current pericd
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds .
Long-term debt {1,442,828)
Long-term compensated absences payable (8,569}
Total long-term liabilities {1,451,397)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 4,724,889

See accompanying notes to the basic tinancial statements.

- 14 -



Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
AEVENUES
Taxes $ 1,247,700 $ 2,858 $ 1,250,558 .
Charges for services 1,530 3,800 5,330
Intergovernmental 3,766 16,604 20,370
Licenses and permits 54,461 - 54,461
Interest eamed 1,981 287 2,268
Miscelianeous 58,642 - 58,542
Total Revenuss 1,367,980 23,549 1,391,529
EXPENDITURES
Current operating:
General government 528,218 10,624 538,842
Highways and streets 223,199 - 223,199
Culture/recreation 100 - 100
Planning and zoning 97,632 - 97,632
Housing and development 11,877 2,772 14,349
Capitai outfay: - 23,844 23,944
Debt service: 142,175 - 142,175
Total Expenditures 1,002,901 37,340 1,040,241
EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) 365,079 {13,791) 351,288
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ({USES)

Transfers in {out) - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 365,079 (13,791) ' 351,288
FUND BALANCES - beglnning of year ' 1,543,249 215,198 1,758,447
FUND BALANCES - end of year $ 1,908,328 $ 201,407 $ 2,109,735

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 33, 2014

Ses accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION QOF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

2014

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 351,288
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because;

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation
axpense in the current period.

Deprscialion expenss $ {160,397)

Capital outlay - capital projects fund $ 22,744
Capital outlay reported in general government funclion 23,615
Capital outlay $ 46,359

(114,038)

Governmental funds include the cost of principal debt reducton as an
expenditure which s not included in the statement of activilies. 12,220

Governmental funds do not include the expense of long-term
compensated absences liabilites, which are reflected
in the Statement of Net Position.

Current year liability - fong term compensatad absences {8,569)

Prior year liabllity - long term compensated absences 5,961
(2,608)

Rounding 1

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 346,863

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Far the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Orlginal Final Varlarice with
Budget Budgst Actual Final Budget
AEVENUES
Taxes $ 1,127,800 $& 1,127,800 $ 1,247,700 $ 119,900
Charges for services 1,500 1,500 1,530 30
Licenses and permita 42,100 42,100 54,481 12,361
Intargovernmental reventies 1,000 1,000 3,766 2,768
Interest earned 1,500 1,500 1,981 481
Miscellansous 50,100 50,100 58,542 . B442
Total ravenues 1,224,000 1,224,000 1,367,980 143,980
EXPENDITURES
Current opsraling:
Genaeral governrment 615,000 615,000 528,218 86,782
Highways and slreets 310,000 . 310,000 223,199 88,801
Cuilure/racreation 8,000 8,000 100 7,900
Planpning and zoning 120,000 120,000 97,632 22,268
Housing and development 21,000 21,000 11,577 9,423
Debt service; 160,000 150,000 142,175 7,825
Total expenditures 1224000 _ 1224000 __ 1,002,901 221,009
TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES " 365,079 365,079
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contigancles, surplus reserves - - -
Transfers out : . . . -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCGING
SOURCES (USES) - - - .
NET CHANGE [N FUND BALANCE 8 § - 365,079 3 365,079
FUND BALANCES - beglnning of year 1,543,249
FUND BALANCES - end of year $ 1,908,328

See accompanylng notes to the basic financial statemants,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE

PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current assels:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible):
Accounts

Prepaid expense

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total non-current assels

TOTAL ASSETS

Ses accompanying notes to the basic financlal stataments.
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Total Water
Sewer & Garbage
Enterprise
Fund

$ 1,778,371

95,060
23,420

89,820

1,986,771

3,001,801
7,396,058

10,397,859

$ 12,384,630




CIiTY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEQRGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2014

LIABILITIES
Current llabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Acerued interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Customer deposits - payable from restricted assets

Tolal current lfabilitles
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences payable
Long-term debt {net of current portion)
Unamortized discount on bonds payabie
Total long-term liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Unrestiicted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
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Total Water
Sewer & Garbage
Enterprise
Fund

$ 62,897
7,532

28,352

225,000

89,845

413,626

9,374
4,450,000
{9,515)

4,449,859

4,863,485

5,732,374
1,788,771

7,621,145

$ 12,384,630




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Misceltansous
Total oparating revenuess
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services and benefits
Purchased and contractual services
Bad debts
Supplies
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Interest, bond issuance, and other fiscal charges
Interest earned
Total non-operating income {foss}
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions - tap fees and other
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - beginning of year

NET POSITION - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Total Water
Sewer & Garbage
Enterprise
Fund

3 1,174,729
30,100

1,204,829

241,309
424,440
4,910
63,621
413,016

1,147,296

57,633

(318,564)
3,973

(314,591}

(257,058)

104,300

(152,758)

7,673,903

$ 7,521,145




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activilies
Cash raceipts from custormners
Cash recelpts from other operaling sources
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services and bensfits

Net cash provided by {used in} operafing activities
Cash Flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from tap fees
Proceeds from debt
Acquisition, construction and disposal of capital asssts, net
Principal paid on debt
Interest, bond Issuance, and other fiscal charges paid
Net cash provided by capital and related financing actlvities
Cash Flows from investing activities
Proceeds from certificates of deposit
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and equlvalents - beginning of year

Cash and equivalents - end of year

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements.
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Total Water
Sewer & Garbage
Enterprise
Fund

$ 1,185,035
30,100
(442,163)
(238,742)

534,230

104,300
4,675,000
(160,729)
(4,845,715)
(296,608)

(523,752)

192,402
3,973

196,375

206,863

1,661,438

$ 1,868,291




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE
PRCPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Total Water
Sewer & Garbage
Enterprise
Fund
Reconciliation of operaling gain (foss) to net cash provided
by {used in) operating activities
Operating incoms $ 57,633
Adlustments
Depreciation 413,016
(increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable ' 2,835
Prepald expense (6,017)
Interfund receivables 10,381
increase (dacrease) in liabilitles
Accounts payable 40,5635
Customer deposits 12,380
Accried expenses 2,028
Compensated absences payable 539
Unearned revenue -
interfund payables
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 534,230
Reconcillation of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,778,371
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 89,920
Total cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,868,291

See accompanying notes to the basic inancial statements.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Narrative Profile

The City of Dawsonville (the “City"} operates under a council/mayor form of government and provides the following services:
public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation, planning and zoning, public improvements and general and
administrative services. In addition, the City operates a public utility (water/sewer and sanitation) for the incorporated and

immediate surrounding areas.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the
United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB") is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The City applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and Interpretations currently in effect) as well as the following
pronouncements issued on or before Novermnber 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conlict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounts Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure. in addition, the Cily
applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements to ils governmental and business-type activities, The more significant of these

accounting policies are described halow.

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34 "Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis
for State and Local Governments.” This Staternent provides for the most significant change in financial reporting in over
twenly vears and requires implementation starting with fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004 for governments with total
revenues less than $ 10 million. The City implemented the basic model during the year ended December 31, 2004.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

As required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales, these financial statements present the
primary government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.

Blended Component Unit:
Dawsonville Downtown Development Authority

On February 6, 1996, the Mayor and Council of Dawsonville, Georgia determined that there was a need in the City for
the revitalization and redevelopment of the central business district of the municipal corporations of the State of
Georgia, The board of directors determined among them their respective terms of office as required under O.C.G.A
Section 36-42-4. The members appointed 2 members for a 2 year ferm of office, 2 members for a 4 year term of
office, and 3 members for a 6 year of office. Thereafter, the members shall duly slect by majority vote a chairperson
and vice chairperson. In addition thereto, a treasurer/secretary or a treasurer and a secrstary will also be elected from
among the remaining directors or appointed from non-director candidates.

The Dawsonville Downtown Development Autharily and the City have a financial and operational refationship which
requires that the Dawsonville Downtown Development Authorily financial statements be blended into the City's
financial statements. The Dawsonville Downtown Devefopment Authorily has no employees and all staff work is done
by the City staff or by the Authority Board of Directors, The financial statements for the Dawsonville Downtown

Development Authority can be obtained at the following address:

Dawsonville Municipal Complex, 415 Highway 53 East, Dawsonville, GA 30534
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CITY OF BAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNI#ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

C. Basic Financial Statements-GASB Statement No. 34

The basic financial statements include both government-wide {based on the City as a whole) and fund financial statemenis.
Fiduciary activities are not included at the government-wide reporting level. While the previous model emphasized fund
types (the total of all funds of a patticular typs), in the new reporting model the focus is on either the City as a whole or major
individual funds (within the fund financial statements). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize
activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. In the government-wide Statement of Nat Position, both
the governmental and business-type aclivities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are
reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-

term debt and obligations,

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflecis both the gross and net cost per functional category (public safety,
public works, ete.), which are otherwise being supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes,
certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permils and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. The program revenuss must be directly
associated with the function or a business-type activity. Program revenues include revenues from licenses and permits fees,
service assessments, and charges for services. The operating granits include operaling-specific and discretionary (sither
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capitai-specific grants. The net cost {by function or
business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (sales or use taxes, intergovernmental revenuss, interest
income, elc.). Historically, the previous model did not summarize or present net cost by function or activity,

This government-wide focus is more on the substantiality of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial
position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The flow of economic resources measurement focus is used for both

government-wide financial statements.

The fund financial statements ars, in substance, very similar to the financial statements presented In the previous model.
Emphasis here is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds (by category
or fund type) are summarized into a single column.

Unless an internal service fund is combined with the business-lype activities (deemed to be an infrequent event), totals oh
the proprietary fund statements should directly reconcile to the business-type activity column presented in the government-

wide statements.

The governmental funds major fund statements in the fund financial statements are presented on a current financial resource
and modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentation
is deemed most appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, (b} demonstiate the source and use of liquid
resources, and {(c) demonstrate how the City's actual experience conforms to the budget or fiscal plan. Since the
governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the
government-wide statements’ governmental column, recongiliation is presented either on the fund statement or on the page
following each statement which briefly explains the adjustment necessary to transform the fund based financial statements
into the governmental column of the government-wide presentation.

The focus of the current model is on the Cily as a whole and the fund financial statements, including the major individual
funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as well as the component unit. Each presentation provides
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the

usefulness of the information,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

D. Basis of Presentation

The financial transactions of the City are recorded In individual funds. Each fund Is accounted for by providing a separate set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
The various funds are reported by genetic classification within the financial staternents.

The model as defined in Statement No. 34 establishes criteria {percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major
funds. The non-major funds are combined in a single column in the fund financial statements, The City reports the following

major funds.

1. Major Funds

Governmental Fund:
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those

required to be accounted for in ancther fund.

Proprietary Funds:
The Water, Sewer and Garbage Fund Is for the operation of the City’s water and sewer utility and trash collection service.

Activities of the fund include administration, operation and maintenance of the water and sewer system and biling and
collection activities, The Fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt
principal and interest for revenue bonds and obligations under capital leases when dus throughout the year. All costs are
financed through charges made to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure

integrity of the Fund.
2. Other Governmental Funds

Capital Projects Fund:
This includes the Splost fund, and a LMIG grant which is used to account for the receipt and expenditures related to capital

construction projects using Splost, and LMIG funding.

Special Revenue Fund:
This includes the Hotel-Motel tax fund which is used to account for the receipt of Hotel-Motel tax revenues. These funds are

used io support tourism,

Permanent Fund:
Permanent Funds account for resources that are legally restricted to allow the earnings (and not the principle) to be usad to

support the governments programs, such as cemeteries, libraries, parks and schofarships,

3. Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities
GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of Account Groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and

incorporates the information into the Governmental column in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

E. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. [t relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardloss of the measurement focus

appliad.

The Government-wide Financial Slatements and the Proprietary and Component Unit Combining Financial Statements are
presented on an accrual basis of accounting. The Governmental Funds in the Fund Financial Statements are presented on a

modifled accrual basis.

Accrual—Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

E. Basis of Accounting (cont'd)

Modified Accrual—all governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e,, both measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined. “Available” means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current peried,

The City defined the length of time used for “available” for purposes of revenue recognition in the governmentat fund financial
statements to be 60 days.

Expenditures are generaily recoghized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.
The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, Is recognizad

when due.

The City recognizes sales tax revenue on a modified accruai basis. [ntergovernmental grant revenues, entitlernents and
contributions are recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements are met. In applying the “susceptible to accrual’
concept to intergovernmental revenues pursuant to GASB Statement No. 33, the provider should recognize liabilities and
expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements including
time requirements, are mel, Resources iransmitted before the eligibility requirements are met should, under most
circumstances, be reported as advances by the provider and as deferred revenue by the recipient.

Proprietary funds, which employ the economic resources measurement focus, distingttish operating revenues and expenses
from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses genserally result from providing goods and services in
cohnection with the proprietary fund's ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds
are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses, transfers or capital contributions.

F. Budgets
The City foliows these proceduras in sstablishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements;

1. Prior to July 1, the Mayor submits to the Council, a proposed operating budget for the calendar year commencing
the foilowing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The
current year period budget was adopted for the fiscal year July 1, 20183 to June 30, 2014.

2. The Council holds a pubiic hearing on the budget, giving notice thereof at least ten days in advance by publication in
the official organ of the City of Dawsonville.

3. The budget is then revised and adopted or amended by the Council at the first regular meeting in July of the year to
which it applies.

4, The budget so adopted may be revised during the year “only” by farmal action of the Council in a reguliar meeting
and no increase shall be made therein without provision also being made for financing the increass,

5. Formal budgstary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund
and Water and Sewer Fund.

6. The level of budgetary control is at the department level. Budgets for the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund
are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

7. Budgeted amounis are as originally adopied, or as amended by the Council. individual amendmenis were not
raterial in :efation to the original appropriations, which were ameanded.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
G. Assets, Liahilities, and Net Assets

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Ihvestments
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Cily considers cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and

cash equivalents) to be currency on hand, and liquid investments with a maturity of three months or iess when purchased.
Cash and cash equivalents are included in both unrestricted as well as restricted assets.

Investments include pooled investments and certificates of deposit (with maturities of three months or greater). Investments
and certificates of deposit are reported at fair value.

The City does not maintain an investment policy that limits its investment choices, Georgia law authorizes the City to invest
in the following type of obligations:

Obfigations of the State of Georgia or of any other states

Obligations of the United States Government

Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S, government or by governmental agency of the United Slates
Obligations of any corporation of the U.S, government

Prime bankers' acceptances

The Stats of Georgia local government investment pool

Repurchase agresments

Obiigations of the other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia

YVVYVVVVVVYYVY

2. Inventories
Expendable supplies are recorded as expenditures at the time the items are purchased. The City does not record

inventories of supplies at year end due to the iack of materiality.

3. Prepaid items
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2014, are recorded as prepaid items using

the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the expenditurefexpense in the year in
which services are consumed, At the fund reporting level, an equal amount of fund balance is reserved as this amount is not

available for general appropriation.

4, Restricted Assets
Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normai understanding of the availability

of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other
governiments, or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted assets in the
enterprise funds represent cash, cash equivalents and certificates of deposit set aside for repayment of deposits to utility
customers and cash funds required to be malntained by the bond.

5. Property Taxes
The City does not levy property taxes.

6. Capital Asssts
General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds, These assets

generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The City repoits these assets in the governmental activilies
coluinn of the government-wide statermant of net position but does not report these assais in the governimental fund iianciai
statements. Capital assets utilized by enterprise iunds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net position and in the enterprise fund’s statement of net pasition.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
G. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (cont’d)

6. Capital Assets (cont'd)
All capital assets are capitalized at cost {(or estimated historical cosf} and updated for additions and retirements during the

year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received, The City maintains a
capitalization threshold of § 5,000. The City's infrastructure consists of roads, bridges and water lines, Improvements to
capital assets are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend an asset's life are expansed. Intersst incurred during the construction of capital assets utilized by the

enterprise fund is capitalized.

Al reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, artifacts, right-of-ways and construction in progress.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for infrastructure
were estimated based on the City's historical records of necessary improvements and replacement. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method for all real property and primarily straight line with other methods used periodically
for equipment over the fclfowing usefui lives:

Governmsntal Buslness-Type
Agctivitles Aclivities

Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Building and Improvements 20-50 years 20-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 years 5-10 ysars
Vehicles 5-7 years 5-7 years
Infrastructure 15-40 years 25-65 years
Water/Sewer System and Plant 25-60 years

7. Compensated Absences
Personal leave benefits are accrued as a liabllity as the benefits are earned if the employee’s rights to receive compensataon

are attributable io services already randered and it is prebable that the employer will compensate the employees for the
benefits through paid time off or some other means.

The total compensated absence fiability is reported on the government-wide financial statements, Proprietary funds report
the total compensated liability in each individual fund at the fund reporting level. Governmental funds report the
compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level only “whean due”.

8. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements. In
general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are repcrted as obligations of these funds. However, compensated absences that will be paid
from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only fo the extent they are “due for
payment” during the current year. Capital leases are recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements

when due.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GECRGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D
G. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position {(cont’d)

9. Fund Equity
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classifted as “fund balance.” Fund equity for all olher

repotriing Is classifled as “net position.”

Fund Balance — Generally, fund balance represents the difference hetween the current assets and current liabilities. The
City restricts those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific future use or which do not represent
available, spendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation or expenditure. Unassigned fund balance
indicates that portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation in future periods. Designations are management's

intent to set aslde these resources for specific services.

Net Position — Net position represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investrent in capital assets, consist
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legisiation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.

in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type
Definitions, the County classifies government fund balances as follows:

¢ Non-spendable — includes fund balances that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable forms or
because of legal or contractual constraints.

¢ Restricted — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally
imposed by providers, stch as credilors or amounts constrained due to constitulional provisions or enabling

legislation.

¢ Committed — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the government through formali action of the highest level of decision making authority and does

not lapse at year-end.

¢ Assigned - Includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither
considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be assigned by the Mayor and City Council.

¢ Unassigned — includes positive fund balance with the General Fund which has not been classified within the
above mentioned categories and negative fund baiances in other governmentai funds.

Minimum Level of Unassigned Fund Balance - The general fund unassigned fund balance will be maintained at a level
sufficient to provide for the required resources to meet operating costs, to allow for unforeseen needs of an emergency
nature and to permit orderly adjustment to changes resuiting from fluctuations of revenue resources. The City will maintain
at least six months of prior year general fund operating and non-operating expenses in the unassigned balance of the

general fund.

The City will use restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available unless
there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing so, as in grant agresments that require matching doltar spending.
Additionally, the City will use commitied, then assigned and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when

expenditures are made,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
G. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (cont'd)
9. Fund Equity (cont’d)

Fund balances at June 30, 2014 consist of the following for the governmental funds:

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Fund balances:
Non-spendable
Prepald items $ 43,732 $ - $ 43,732
Restricted:
Hotel/motel - 254 254
Cemetery - 190,388 190,388
Capital projects - 10,765 10,765
Unassigned: 1,864,596 - 1,864,596
Total fund balance $ 1,908,328 $ 201,467 $ 2,109,735

10. Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the
City, these revenues are charges for services for water, sewer and sanitation. Non-operating revenues and expenses
consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing type of activities and result from non-
exchange transactions or anclllary activities. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or
service that are the primary activity of each fund.

The Water and Sewer fund recognizes the portion of tap fees intended to recover current costs (e.g. labor and materials to
hook up new customers as operating revenue. The portion intended to recover the costs of the infrastructure is recognized
as non-operating revenue or capital contributions. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the costs of sales
and service, depreciation on capital assets and personnsl services and benefits. All revenue and expenses not mesting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses or capital contributions and transfers.

11. Program Revenues

Program revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the governmental funds.
These consist of licenses, permits, inspections, rental income, cemstery lot sales, fire protection service, and grants.

12. Interfund Activity
Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expendituresfexpenses in the

purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund fo another without a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund fransfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-
operaling revenues/expenses section in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are reported as

general revenues, Transfers belween funds reported in the governmental aciivities column are eliminated. Transfers
betwasen funds reported in the business-type activities column are eliminated.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
June 3G, 2014

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
G. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (cont'd)

13. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management ta make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Credit and Concentration Risk — Investments: The City maintains investments in Georgia Fund 1, a combined state general
fund and local government investment pool managed by the Office of the State Treasurer. Georgia Fund 1, formerly referred
to as “LGIP" was established by O.C.G.A. 36-83-8. Georgia Fund 1 operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an

investment company.

The pool's primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and diversification while maintaining principal
($1.00 per share value), Net asset value is caiculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings on a monthly
basis and determines participant's shares sold and redesmed based on $ 1.00 per share. The Georgia Office of the State
Treasurer manages Georgia Fund 1. The investment policies of Georgia Fund 1 are established by the Georgia State

Depository Board, which provides regulatory oversight.

The Georgia Fund 1 is rated AAAf rated investment pool by Standard & Poor's. The weighted average maturity at June 30,
2014 was 62 days. Yield is an actual/365 day basis, net of administrative fees, The City's balance in Georgia Fund 1 at

June 30, 2014 was $ 1,640,397,

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits:
The City maintains a formal adopted deposit, investment and custodial credit risk policies and all deposits at June 30, 2014

were insured or collateralized by pledges held in the City's name in the Georgia Bankers Assoclation, Inc. pledging pool.
Public funds are not required to disclose custodial credit risk for external investment poois; therefore, the Georgia Fund 1 Is

exempt from this requirement.

Interest Rate Risk — Deposits:
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates may adversely affect an investment's fair value. Since the price of a

bond fluctuates with market interest rates, the risk than an investor faces is that the price of a bond heid in a portfolio will
decline if market interest rates rise. The portfolic's weighted average maturity (WAM) is a key determinate of the tolerance of
a fund's investments to risking interest rates. In general, the longer the WAM, the more susceptible the fund is to rising
interest rate. According to GASB Statement 40, an acceptable method for reporting interest rate risk is WAM. WAM is the

method used for reperting purposes for Georgia Fund 1,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)
A. Deposits and Investments {cont’d)
1. Restricted Assets:

The City's cash, cash equivalents and cettificates of depaosit are restricted for the following purposes:

6/30/2014

Capital projects fund:

Sidewalk projects 3 16,905
Permanent fund:

Maintenance and care for the cemetery 190,388
Proprietary fund:

Customer deposits 89,820
Total restricted cash, cash equivalents and cettificates of deposit $ 297,213

B. Receivables

Receivables are recorded on the Cily's financial statements fo the extent that the amounts are determined to be material and
substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of determining their
existence, completeness, valuation, and in the case of recsivables, collectability. All receivables are current and therefore
due within one year. Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncoliectible accounts and revenues net of
uncollectibles. Allowances for tncollectible accounts netied with accounts receivable were $ - 0 - as of June 30, 2014,

Receivables at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

Other Propristary
General Governmental Water &
Fund Funds Sewer Fund Total
Receivables
Water, sewer and garbage bills $ - $ - $ 95,060 $ 95,080
Taxes receivable 142,102 212 - 142,314
Gross receivables $ 142,102 $ 212 $ 95,060 $ 237,374

C. Interfund Balances and Transfers

interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided relimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as
receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and referred to as either “due toffrom
other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the government activities and the business-tyne activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Advances belween funds, as raported in the
fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable government funds to indicate that they
are not available for appropriation and are not financial resources.
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CiTY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’'D)

C. Interfund Balances and Transfers (cont'd)

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as
relmbursement. All other Interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between government or proprietary funds
are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation:

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2014 as follows;

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund . $ - $ 6,918
Other governmental funds:
Hotel-motel fund reimbursement 776 -
Capital projects fund 6,140 -
Total $ 6,918 $ 6,916
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 ~ DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’'D)
D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Balance Balance
6/30/2013 Additions Dedugctions 6/30/2014
Governmentat aclivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 410,802 | $ - 3 - $ 410,802
Arlifacts 49,751 - - 49,751
Total capital assets not being depreciated 460,553 - - $ 480,553
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 3,306,824 . - 3,306,824
Improvements other than buildings 34,3656 . - 34,365
Vehicles 86,556 23,615 - 110,171
Machinery and equipment 228,137 - - 228,137
infastructure 1,732,317 22,744 - 1,755,061
Total depreciable capital assets 5,388,199 46,359 - 5,434,558
Accumulated depreciation: :
Buildings 1,069,539 71,310 - 1,140,849
Improvements other than buildings _ 21,630 2,197 - 23,827
Vehicles ‘ 86,557 - - 86,557
Machinery and equipment 172,034 17,980 - 190,014
Infastructure : 318,403 68,910 - 387,313
Total accumulated depreciation 1,668,163 160,397 - 1,828,560
Total depreciable capilal assets - net 3,720,036 {137,653) - 3,582,383
Governmental activities capital assels, net $ 4,180,589 $ {114,038) $ - $ 4,086,551
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GECRGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)

D. Capital Assets {cont'd)

Business-type aclivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer system
Sewer treatment plant

Total depreciable capital assets
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer system
Sewer treatment plant
Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets - net

Business-lype activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to function as follows:

General government
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Planning and zoning

Total governmental activities depreciation expense

Business-type activities
Water and sewer

Balance Balance
6/30/2013 Additions Deductions 6/30/2014

$ 2,933,187 $ - $ 2,933,187
243,759 - 175,145 68,614
3,176,946 - 175,145 3,001,801
230,465 - - 230,465
264,720 - - 264,720
9,540,972 160,729 - 9,701,701
918,316 - - 918,316
10,954,473 160,729 - 11,115,202
45516 5,909 - 51,425
240,780 12,986 - 253,766
2,677,662 - 370,431 - 3,048,093
342,170 23,690 - 365,860
3,308,128 413,016 3,719,144
7,648,345 (252,287) - 7,396,068
$ 10,825,291 {252,287) $ 175,145 $ 10,397,859

139,335

19,229

1,833

160,397

413,018
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)

E. Compensated Absences

Employees earn personal leave based on 26 bi-weekly payroll periods per year at the rate of 6 hours per bi-weekly payroll
period for the first 5 years of employment, 8 hours per bi-weekly payroll period for 5 to 10 years of continuous service, and
10 hours per hi-weekly payroll period for over 10 years of confinuous service,

Personai leave cannot be accrued in excess of 240 hours. Employees may be compensated for excess personal leave up to
80 hours per year provided they have banked a minimum of 120 houys of personal leave,

F. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Government has joined together with other municipalities in
the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the
Georgla Municipal Association Group Self-Insurance Workers Compensation Fund, a public enlity risk pool currentiy
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member local governments.

As parl of these risk pools, the Government is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pool's agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures estabiished by the funds, and
to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could
resuit In the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The Government is also to allow the pool's agents and
attorneys to represent the Government in investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any
claim made against the Government within the scope of loss protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the member
government contract and in accordance with the worker's compensation faw of Georgia. The funds are to pay all cost
taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment,

and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.
3. Retirement Plan

1. Plan Description

The City participates in the Georgla Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS) Retirement Fund, an agent muitiple-
amployer defined benefit pfan where contributions made by the City are commingled with contributions made by the other
participanis of the GMEBS Retirement Fund for investment purposes. The Plan periodically issues an overall report to the
required agencies. A stand-alone financial report can be obtained at City Hall.

The specific benefit provisions of the City's Plan were established by an adoption agreement executed by the City Counchl.
The Plan provides for benefits upon retirement, death, disablement, and termination of employment. The Plan is affiliated
with the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System Retirement Fund, an agent multiple-employer pension plan
administered by the Georgia Municipal Association (GMA). The City Council retains the authority to amend the adoption
agreement, which defines the specific operational provisions of The Plan. An outline of the plan provisions is as follows:

2. Funding Policy

The Cily is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount annually to the Plan's trust. The contribution amount is
determined using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the GMEBES Plan Trustess and intendad to satisfy the
minimurn contribution requirements as set forth in controlling State of Georgia statutes.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT'D)
G. Retirement Pian (cont'd)

3. Annual Contribution Cost

The City's annual pension cost and net pension cbligation for the pension plan for the current year are as follows:

July 1, July 1, July 1,
2014 2013 2012
Annual required contribution $ 26,648 $ 26,444 $ 31,425
Interest on net pension obligation - - -
Adjustment to annual required contribution - - -
Annual cost 26,648 26,444 31,425
Required employes contribution . - -
Total contributions made $ 26,648 $ 26,444 3 31,425
Recommended contribution as
a percentage of payroll 8.98% 10.09% 13.69%
Current valuation date July 1, 2014

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method for remaining unfunded liability
Hemaining amortization pericd

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Net investment rate of return
Projected annual salary increased
Inflation rate

Cost of living adjustment

Mernbership of the plan:
Retirees and beneficiaries recsiving banafits
Terminated plan members entitled to, but not yet
raceiving benetits
Active plan members

Total

-38 -

Projacted Unit Credit
Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded fiability
Remaining amortization period varies for the
bases, with a net effective amortization period
of 16 years.
Sum of actuarial value at beginning of year
and the cash flow during the year pius the
assumed investment return, adjusted by
10% of the amount that the value exceeds
or is less than the market value at end of
year. The acluarial value is adjusted, if
necessary, to be within 50% of market value for
2009, 44% of market value for 2010, 38% of
market value for 2011, 32% of market value for
2012, 26% of market value for 2013, and 20% of
market value for 2014 and later years.

7.75%

3.5% plus age and service based merit increases
3.50%
0.00%




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)

G. Retirement Plan (cont'd)

3. Annual Contribution Cost (cont’d)

The recommended contribution meets the guidelines for calculating an annual required contribution as set forth in
paragraphs 9-10 of Statement No. 27 issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, These contributions are
determined under the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The asset valuation method for developing the actuarial
value of assels Is the sum of actuarial value at beginning of year and the cash flow during the year plus the assumed
investment return, adjusted by 10 percent of the amount that the value exceeds or is less than the market value at the end of
year. The actuarial value is adjusted, if necessary, to be within 50% of market value of 2009, 44% of market value for 2010,
38% of market value for 2011, 32% of market value for 2012, 26% of market value for 2013, and 20% of market value for

2014 and later years.

The amortization of the unfunded accrued liability is level dollar over 30 years for the initfal unfunded accrued liability, 15
years for actuarial gains and losses, 20 years for pian provisions and 30 years for actuarial assumptions and cost methods.
The total amortization must be within a corridor of the 10-year and the 30-year amortization of the unfunded/ {surplus)
actuarial accrued liability. In a year when the 10-year or 30-year corridor applies, ihe following year, the prior year bases are
combined into one 10-year or 30-year bases.

Details of the funded status and funding results for the Plan as of July 1, 2014 are presented as Required Supplementary
Information immediately following the notes to the financial statements. The schedule of funding progress presents muiti-
year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to

the actuarial accrued liability for bensfits.

Trend Analysis

UAAL as a

(a) {b) ‘ {c) Perceniage

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered

Valuation Value of Accrued ~ Ratio AAL (UAAL) Payroll Payroll

Date Assels Liability AAL {a/b) {b-a} (prior vear) { {b-al/c)
71172014 $ 294,560 $ 376,175 78.30% $ 81615 $ 291,757 27.97%
7/1/2013 251,717 347,407 72.46% 95,690 257,486 37.16%
711/2012 218,040 307,336 70.95% 89,296 225,663 39.57%
71172011 181,909 297,955 61.05% 116,046 210,223 55.20%
7112010 150,837 277,356 54.38% 126,519 281,976 44.87%
10/1/2009 133,082 239,503 55.57% 106,421 281,976 37.74%
9/1/2008 92,458 227,325 40.67% 134,867 365,102 36.94%
9/1/2007 69,471 193,493 35.80% 124,022 322,927 38.41%
9/1/2006 48,068 168,254 28.57% 120,186 189,119 41.57%
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(CONT'D)

H. Long-Term Debt

1. Municipal Loans (Water & Sewer Fund)

During 2001, the City incurred debt from a Georgia Environmental Facllities Authority loan for the purchase of land and
construetion of a new water tank. In 2008, the City finalized a contract with Georgia Environmental Fagilities Authority issued

for financing the purchase of land and construction of three wells. These loans were paid in full in the current year in
conjunction with the 2014 bond issuance.

Balance Balance Due One
6/30/2013 Issuad Retired 6/30/2014 Year
Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority
loan dated November 15, 2000 with 4.72%
interest and quarterly payments of
$ 10,323.54 beginning January 1, 2003
and ending October 1, 2023. Original
loan $ 532,603, $ 314649 - % 34849 0§ - %

Georgla Environmental Facilities Authority
loan dated February 1, 2008, with 4.12%
interest and monthly payments of

$ 5,832.29 beginning March 1, 2008 and

ending February 1, 2028, Original
loan $ 952,487, 769,349 - 769,349

$ 1,083,998 $ - %

R
:

Total Municpal Loans (Water & Sewer Fund} § 1,083,998

2. Revenue Bonds (Water & Sewer Fund)

The 1997 Series Revenue Bonds were issued to provide financing for acquiring, constructing and instalfing additions,
extensions and improvements to the existing water and sewer system of the City, The bonds are collateralized by the
revenus of the water and sewer system. These bonds were redeemed in conjunction with the 2014 bond issuance.

The 2003 Series Revenue Bonds were issued fo provide financing for acquiring, constructing and installing additions,
extensions and improvements to the existing water and sewer system of the City. The bonds are collateralized by the
revenus of the water and sewer system. These bonds were redesmed in conjunction with the 2014 bond issuance.

The 2006 Series Revenue Bonds were issued to provide financing for acquiring, constructing and installing additions,
extensions and improvements to the existing water and sewer system of the City. The bonds are collateralized by the
revenue of the water and sewer system. These bonds were redeemed in conjunction with the 2014 bond Issuance.

On April 1, 2014, the Downtown Development Authority issued Series 2014 Revenue Bonds for the ptirpose of prepaying the
outstanding loans to the City from GEFA (ses Muricipat Bonds above), redeeming the City's outetanding Water and Sowar
Revenue Bonds (see Revenue Bonds below), acquisition of the system, and to pay the cost of issuance of the Series 2014
Bonds. The City entered into an Intergovernmental Lease Agreement with the Downtown Development Authority by which
the City has agreed to pay the bond debt installments under a lease-purchase arrangsment uniil the fulf debt is satisfied.
The City has agreed, if necessary, lo levy an annual properly tax to produce revenues sufficient to fulfill the debt obligation.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES CN ALL FUNDS (CONT'D)
H. Long-Term Debt (cont'd)
2. Revenue Bonds (Water & Sewer Fund — cont’d)

Changes in bond debt liability for the year ending June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Balance
6/30/2013 Issued

Retired

Balance
6/30/2014

Due One
Year

Series 1997-A, Water & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated December 31, 1897 with 4.5% interest

and monthly payments of $ 606 beginning

January 11, 1998 and ending December 31,

2037. Original loan $ 134,540. $ 107689 § -

Series 1997 - B, Waler & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated December 11, 1997 with 4.5% interest

with monthly payment of $ 960 beginning

January 11, 1998 and ending December 11,

2037. Original loan $ 213,300, 170,570 -

Series 1997-C, Water & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated December 11, 1997 with 4.5% interest

with monthly payments of $ 1,081 beginning

January 11, 1998 and ending December 11,

2037, Orignal loan $ 240,120. 192,160 -

Series 2003, Water & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated May 4, 2004 with 4.375% interest with

monthly payment of $ 2,022 beginning June 30,

2004 and ending May 3, 2044. Original

loan $ 457,250, 410,196 -

Serigs 2008, Water & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated March 7, 2007 with interest currently at

4.125% and not o exceed 4.5% with monthly

payments of $ 13,910 beginning April 7, 2007

and ending March 7, 2047, Original

loan $ 3,091,100, 2,881,102 -

Series 2014, Water & Sewer Revenue Bond

dated February 1, 2014 with interest

currentiy at 2.0% and not fo exceed 3.5%

beginning February 1, 2014 and ending

February 1, 2033, Original

lcan § 4,675,000, - 4,675,000

$ 107,689

170,570

192,160

410,196

2,881,102

$ -

4,675,000

225,900

Total Revenue Bond Debt (Water & Sewer Fund) $3,761,717  $4,675,000

$3,761,717

$4,675,000

$225,000
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)
H. Long-Term Debt (cont'd)

2. Revenue Bonds (Water & Sewer Fund — cont’d)

Debt-service requirements for fong-term revenue bond debt are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2015 3 225,000 $ 97,158 % 322,158
2016 200,000 121,770 321,770
2017 205,000 115,770 320,770
2018 210,000 108,620 319,620
2019 220,000 103,320 323,320
2020-2024 1,150,000 456,540 1,608,540
2025-2029 1,285,000 308,255 1,593,255
2030-2033 1,180,000 101,220 1,281,220
Total $ 4,675,000 $ 1,413,653 $ 6,088,653

3. Downtown Development Authority Series 2005 Revenue Bonds (Component Unit)
And Intergovernmental Capital Lease Agreement (General Fund)

On December 22, 2005, the Downtown Development Authority issued Series 2005 Revenue Bonds for the purpose of
financing or refinancing the costs of acquiring propeity known as the Dawsonville Municipal Complex for the City of
Dawsonville. The value of capital assets recorded under the capital lease agreement for the Dawsonvilte Municipal Complex
building totals $ 2,575,106. Subsequently, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Lease Agreement with the Downtown
Development Authority by which the City has agreed to pay the bond debt instaliments under a lease-purchase arrangement
until the full debt is satisfied. The City has agreed, if necessary, to levy ad valorem tax on property to produce revenues

sufficient to fulfill the debt obligation.

The Series 2005 — A Bonds provide financing for the portion of the Dawsonville Municipal Complex that houses the City
government facilities and thereby designated as a "qualified tax-exempt” obligation eligible for preferential governmental
finance rates. Series 2005 ~ B Bonds fund the portion of the property that is to be used for commercial development and

thereby preferred governmental finance rates are not applicable.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)

H. Long-Term Debt (cont'd)

3. Downtown Development Authority Series 2005 Revenue Bonds (Component Unit)
And Intergovernmental Capital Lease Agreement (General Fund) (cont’d)

Balance Balance Due One
6/30/2013 Issued Retired 6/30/2014 Year
Series 2005-A, DDA Revenus Bonds dated
December 22, 2005 with interest rate per
annum equal to the "Prime Rate” as
published in the Money Rates saction of
The Wall Street Journal - Southeastern
Edition. Monthly payments of $ 11,862.39
beginning January 22, 2006 and
ending December 22, 2025. Original
loan $ 2,166,922, $ 1,555,048 3 - $ 112,220 $ 1,442,828 $ 113,600
Total Bond Debt (DDA) $ 1,555,048 § - $ 112,220 $ 1,442,808 $ 113,600
Debt-service ragquirements for long-term debt are as follows:
Principal Interest Total
2015 113,600 28,029 141,629
2016 114,220 27,409 141,629
2017 116,693 24,936 141,629
2018 119,220 22,409 . 141,629
2019 121,801 19,828 141,629
2020-2024 648,140 60,218 708,358
2025 209,154 3,563 212,717
$ 1,442,828 $ 186,392 $ 1,629,220
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014
NOTE 2 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONT’D)
H. Long-Term Debt (cont'd)

4. Compensated Absences (General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund)

Long-term compensated absences liability consists of the following as of June 30, 2014;

Balance Balance Due One
6/30/2013 Issued Retired 6/30/2014 Year
Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $ 5,961 $ 14864 $ 12256 $ 8569 $
Water & Sewer Fund
Compensated Absences 8,835 17,354 16,815 9,374

Total Compensatsd Absences $ 14,796 $ 32,218 $ 29,071 $ 17,943 $

Compensated absences are liquidated in the general fund for governmental activities and in the enterprise fund for business-
type activities,

I. Restricted Equity Balances
1, Permanent Fund

Restricted for cemetery — An amount of $ 190,388 has been restricted in the Cemetery Fund since this amount is not legally
available for appropriation. Of these funds, $ 190,388 is expendable for cemetery perpetual care,

2, Special Revenue Fund

Restricted for tourism — A total of $ 254 has been restricted for tourism expenditures in the Hotel-Motel Fund since this
amount is not legally avaifable for appropriation.

3. Capital Projects Fund

Restricted for capital projects — An amount of $ 10,765 has been restricted in the SPLOST capital projects fund for restricted
asssts since this amount is not legally available for appropriation.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 3 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Liability
A. Intergovernmental agreement for LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX {LOST) revenues.

Effective January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2022, the local option sales tax proceeds shall be divided between parties
with Dawson County to receive 88% of the LOST proceeds and the City to receive 12% of LOST proceeds. The City will no
longer pay for law enforcement services and fire protection services, those services will still be covered by Dawson County;
however, those funds are received from LOST proceeds and the Dawson County will not receive any disbursements from

the City for those services.

B. Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. Although the outcome of these matters is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the management and the City's Council that any potential liabliity resulting from the
resolution of these matters would be covered under liabiiity insurance and not have a materially adverse effect on the

financial condition of the County.
Note 4 — GRHOF MUSEUM ARTIFACTS

During 2001, the City of Dawsonville acquired the collateral goods and adifacls of the Georgia Racing Hail of Fams
Museum for $ 69,000. The City of Dawsonville has disposed and sold some of the artifacts during the years and now has a
remaining cost basis of $ 49,751. The collection includes racing artifacts and memorabilia, which are expected fo maintain
intrinsic value and are, therefore, not depreciated. Also included in the purchase were various equipment and fixtures that
are not depreciated because individual items are valued below the City's capitalization threshold. In January 2011, the
Georgla Racing Hail of Fame established its own entity as the Dawsonville History Museum, Inc. The City still owns the
collateral goods and artifacts of the Georgia Racing Hall of Fame.

Note 5 - JOINT VENTURE

Georgia Mountains Regional Commission (GMRC)

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the thirty County Northeast Georgia area, is a
member of the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission (GMRC) and is required to pay annual dues thereto.
Membership in GMRC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which providas for
the organization structure of the GMRC in Georgia. The GMRC Board membership includes the chief elected official of
each county and municipality of the area and private sector individuals from each County and three minority members.
Annual dues are paid by the Dawson County Board of Commissioners to include the City of Dawsonville and overall

county populace,
OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of a GMRC. Separate
financial statements may be obtained from:

Georgia Mountains Regional Commission
1310 West Ridge Road
Gainesville, Georgia 30501

Note 6 - HOTEL/MOTEL TAX

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the City had receipis of $ 2,358 based on the tax rate of 6%. These funds are held
for disbursement to the Dawson County Chamber of Commercs for the purpose of promoting tourlsm. The City complied
with the requirements of OCGA 48-13-51, :
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Note 7 —- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 1, 2014, the dats the financial statements were available
to be issued. Subsequent to year-end the City was granted a GEFA loan through the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan
Fund in the amount of $ 1,000,000 for the purpose of upgrading the water/sswer system. The Downtown Development
Authority purchased land and the City entered into a lease agreement. The City, in conjunction with the DDA, plans {o turn
the land into a park. The City has received a malching grant of $ 300,000 through the USDA, Appalachian Regional
Commission to further upgrade the water/sewer system. The City entered into an intergovernmental agreement (SPLOST
V1) with Dawson County. Under this agresment, the special local option sales tax proceeds shall be divided between parties
with Dawson County to receive 85% of the SPLOST proceeds and the Cily to receive 15% of SPLOST proceeds, Dawson
County voters overwhelmingly approved SPLOST VI on November 11, 2014, SPLOST VI is expected to begin in June,

2015.
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Actuarlaf
Valuation
Date

712014
71172013
7M1/2012
71/2011
7/1/2010
10/1/2009
9/1/2008
9M1/2007
9/1/2006

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GECRGIA
DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS-RETIREMENT PLAN

(a) (b
Actuarial Actuarial
Value of Accrued

Assels Liability AAL
$ 294,560 $ 376,175
251,717 347,407
218,040 307,336
181,909 297,955
150,837 277,356
133,082 239,503

92,458 227,325

69,471 193,493

48,068 168,254

Funded
Ratio

(a/b)

78.30%
72.46%
70.95%
61.05%
54.38%
56.57%
40.67%
35.90%
28.57%

=45 -

Unfunded
AAL (UAAL)
(b-a}

$ 81615
95,690
89,296

116,046
126,519
108,421
134,867
124,022
120,186

(¢

Coverad
Payroll

$ 291,757
257,486
225,663
210,223
281,976
281,976
365,102
322,927
189,119

UAALasa

Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

{ {b-a)/c)

27.97%
37.16%
39.57%
56.20%
44.87%
37.74%
36.94%
38.41%
41.57%
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SPLOST AND LMIG GRANT
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2014

SPLOST
and
LMIG Grant
ASSETS
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,805
TOTAL ASSETS _ 16,205
LIABILITIES

Due to general fund 6,140
FUND BALANCE

Restricted for capital projects 10,765
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 16,905
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
HOTEL-MOTEL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Taxes receivable
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current - accounts payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for tourlsm

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

-850 -

Hotal-Motel

Fund

212
776

988

734

734

254

588
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ASSETS
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equlvalents

TOTAL ASSETS

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for cemetery fund

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENAL FUND
PERMANENT FUND
CEMETERY FUND
BALANCE SHEET
Junse 30, 20114

.52

Cemetery Fund
3 190,388
190,388
190,388

$ 190,388
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Supplementary Information




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEQRGIA
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATIONS
WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE FUND
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

Water
Sewer Garbage Total
ASSETS ' ) ' '
Currant assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,659,962 $ 118409 $ 1,778,371
Receivables {net of allowance for uncolfectible):
Accounts 78,113 15,847 95,060
Interfund receivahles - - .
Prepaid expense 23,420 - 23,420
Restricted assets: -
Cash and cash equivalents 89,920 . 89,920
Certificates of deposit - - -
Total current assets 1,852,415 134,366 1,986,771
Non-current assets:
Restricted agsets:
Centificates of deposit - - -
Capltal assats:
Land 2,933,187 - 2,633,187
Nondapreclable capital assets 68,614 - 68,614
Depraclable capitat agsets, net 7,396,068 - 7,396,058
Total non-current Agsets 10,397,859 - 10,307,859
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,260,274 $ 184,356 % 12,864,630
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATIONS

WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

LIABILITIES
Current llabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Customer deposits - payable from restricted assets

Total current fiabilities
l.ong-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (net of current portion)
Unamonlized discount on bonds payable
Compensated absences payabls
Total long-term liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Water
Sewer Garbage Total
$ 57,027 $ 5,870 $ 62,897
7,532 - 7,632
28,3562 - 28,352
225,000 - 225,000
89,845 89,845
407,756 5,870 413,626
4,450,000 - 4,450,000
(9,515) - {9,515)
9,374 - 9,374
4,449,859 4,449,859
4,857,615 5,870 4,863,485
5,732,374 - 5,732,374
1,660,285 128,486 1,788,771
7,392,659 128,486 7,621,145
$12,250,274 $ 134,356 $ 12,384,630

-54 -




CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATIONS

WATER, SEWER AND GARBAGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Persconal services and benefits
Purchased and contraciual services
Bad debts
Supplies
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Bond issuance costs
Tap fees
Interest and fiscal charges
Interest earned

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
Transfers in {out)
Change in net position
NET POSITION - beginning of year

NET POSITION - end of year

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Water
Sewer Garbage Total
$ 1,084,192 $ 90,537 $ 1,174,729
28,639 1,461 30,100
1,112,831 91,998 1,204,829
241,309 - 241,309
353,827 70,513 424,440
4,292 G618 4,910
63,621 - 63,621
413,016 - - 413,018
1,076,165 71,131 1,147,296
36,666 20,867 57,533
(134,453) . (134,453)
104,300 - 104,300
(184,111) - (184,111)
3,973 - 3,973
(210,201) - (210,291)
(173,625) 20,867 (152,758)
(173,625) 20,867 (152,758)
7,666,284 107,619 7,673,903
$ 7,392,659 $ 128,486 $ 7,521,145
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Finat Varance with
Budgst Actual Final Budgst -
OPERATING REVENUES
Chargas for services :
Water fees $ 537,805 $ 488,989 $ (48,818)
Sewer feas 568,138 585,203 27,065
Garbage fees 83,650 90,537 6,887
Miscellaneous 30,000 30,100 100
Total operailng revenues 1,212,593 1,204,829 {14,764}
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and service:
Adveriising 2,300 1,111 1,189
Bad debts 5,160 4,910 240
Communications 14,700 17,273 {2,573)
Depreclation 437,000 413,016 23,984
Dues and subscriplions 8,700 9,452 (752)
Education and {raining 2,400 1,627 873
Food 4,500 3,612 988
Garbage service 75,200 74,309 891
Gas and fuel 10,700 8,305 2,395
Insurance 20,000 13,234 6,766
Licenses 400 - 400
Printing and binding 1,500 1,876 {376)
Professional 62,300 67,700 {5,400}
Rental equipment 1,400 5,678 (4,278)
Repairs and malntenance 37,000 57,592 {20,592}
Supplies 95,900 63,621 32,279
Travet 500 176 324
Technical services 37,500 47,748 {10,248)
Utllitles 108,000 114,847 (6,947)
Total cost of sales and service: 925,160 905,987 19,163
Personal services and benefits:
Salaries 164,892 163,445 1,447
Payroll taxes 11,778 11,094 684
Group insurance 51,030 47,349 3,681
Workers compensation 14,000 4,054 9,046
Retirement 16,600 14,467 2,133
Total personal services and banefits 258,300 241,309 16,991
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}) 36,143 57,533 21,390
NON-OPERATING INCOME {LOSS}
Bond issuance cost {129,535} (134,453} (4,018}
Tap fees . 104,300 104,300
Interest and flscal charges (210,000} (184,111) 25,889
Interest earned 2,900 3,973 1,073
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) {336,635} (210,291) 126,344
CHANGE IN NET PCSITION {300,492) {152,758} 147,734
NET POSITION - beginning of yaar 7,673,903

NET POSITION - end of year

- 56 -
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
INTRODUCTION TO THE STATISTICAL SECTION
{(Unaudited)

This part of the City of Dawsonviile's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financiai statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contenis Pages

STt LA Lol L= I = 2 T [ T P 57-64

Thess tables/schedules comtain trend information designed to assist the reader in
undsrstanding how the City has performed from a financlal perspective over lime.

REVENUE CAPACIY. ¢1vivrrerrereieir et i reer s ettt e et e e s a e s s e e ee e s e b e et b e e arb e e e b et 65-68

These tables/schedules contain information that may assist the reader in assessing the
viabifity of the Cily's most significant revenue sources.

BT o R 1o T Lo | N 69-73

These tables/schedules present information designed to assist the reader in analyzing
the affordability  of the City’s current levels of oulstanding debt, and the City’s ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic INformation.......cee.ve i e 74-76

These tables/schedules offer demographic, economic and statistical information intended
{o assist the reader in understanding the snvironment in which the City’'s financial activities
iake place.

Operating INformation. ...... .o e e 77-78

These tables/schedules conlain service and infrasiructure data to assist the readsr in
understanding how the information in the Cily's financial report relates to the services
the government provides and the activities if performs.

Source: Unlass oihenwlse noted, the information in these tables Is derived from the comprehensiva annual financial report for the relevant year.
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Revenues
Taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Flnes, fees and forfeitures
Interest
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Govermment
Fublic Safely
Highways and Streets
Culture and Recreation
Flanning and Zoning
Housing and Development
Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficlency) of
Revanues over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses})
Transfers in {out)

Net Change in Fund Balances .
Fund Balance- beginning of year
Prior Period Adjustment

Fund Balance- end of year

GENERAL FUND HISTORY
L.ast Five Fiscal Years

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA

Fiscal Year Ending 6/30

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 1,247,700 $ 1,252,245 $ 1,269,333 $ 1,111,480 § 1,062,696
1,530 6,545 20,514 13,476 18,992
3,766 1,000 1,000 . -
54,461 - 63,134 35,471 64,880

. 69,713 - . 50

1,981 2,130 1,596 2,219 2,124

- - - 4,600 7,458

58,542 76,685 66,412 55,444 80,913
1,367,980 1,408,318 1,421,989 1,002,500 1,237,113
508,218 564,015 484,482 453,284 431,229
. 80,000 160,000 160,000 166,550
223,199 247,217 136,796 49,684 46,966
100 1,991 2,343 62,373 17,429
97,632 63,448 79,054 67,241 91,462
11,577 23,667 5,357 3,060 2,666
142,175 - 165,322 164,698 168,035
- 408,157 41,191 20,608 83,812
1,002,901 1,388,495 1,074,545 580,948 1,008,138
365,079 19,823 347,444 241,651 228,975

- (8,029) - - -
365,079 11,794 347,444 241,651 228,975
1,543,249 1,531,455 1,184,011 842,360 583,052
- . - - 129,433

$ 1908328 _$ 1543249 _$ 1531455

$ 1084011 _$ 942,360

Nots: This schedula Is provided to comply with ongoing debt requiremants. The required budgat schedule for the General Fund Is ingluded In the basic firancial

statemanits,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER & SEWER FUND HISTORY
Last Five Fiscal Years

Flscal Year Ending 6/30

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Operating Revenues -

Charges for services $ 1,084,192 § 974718 §$ 856,768 $ 6861402 $ B80,131

Miscellaneous 28,639 55,097 19,451 24,857 24,660
Totai Operating Revenues 1,112,831 1,030,715 876,220 886,259 804,721
Operating Expanses

Personal Services & Bensfits 241,309 230,094 237,321 293,687 315,853

Purchased/Contracted Services 353,927 332,076 340,112 357,797 383,788

Bad Debts ' 4,292 3,308 3,044 4,900 2,010

Supplies 63,621 85,017 63,161 113,470 100,728

Depreciation & Amortization 413,016 434,167 430,143 436,485 431,794
Total Expenditures 1,076,165 1,084,662 1,073,781 1,206,339 1,234,173
Operating income {Loss) 36,666 (53,947) (197,561) (320,080) (329,382)

Non-Operating income (Loss)
Intergovernmental Revenues - - - - 563,762
Contributions & Donatlons - -

(é) {1 ,596)

Galn {foss) on Sale of Assets - - -

Interest & Fiscal Charges (318,564} (206,779) {212,453) (216,913) {225,319)

Interest Earned 3,973 3,953 4413 7,610 12,018
Total Non-Operating incoms (Loss) {314,591) {202,826) (208,042} {210,803) 350,461
Net Income Before Transfers (277,925) (256,773) {405,603} (530,883) 21,079
Tap Fees & Cther

Tap Fees & Other 104,300 466,000 - - -
Transfers In (Out) - - - - -
Change in Net Assels (173,625} 209,227 {405,603) {530,883) 21,079
Net Assels- beginning of year 7,566,284 7,372,598 7,778,201 8,308,084 7,372,005
Pricr Period Adjusiment - {15,541) - - 916,000
Net Assets- end of year $ 7,392,659 =_§ 7,566.284 $ 7372598 _S$ 7,778.201 $ 8,309,084

Note: This schedule [s provided o comply with ongoing deb! requirements, Financlal results related 1o 1he Garbage Functlon are excluded in this presentaticn,
As such, amounis will differ frem the total reperted In the City's basic financial statements. Details of the functional allocations can be found in
supplementary schedules to the City's annual financial statements. The required budgat budget schedule for the Water & Sewer Fund is alsa Included in

supplementary information.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Ning Years Ago

2014 005
Peicentage of Total Parceniaga of Total
Taxabla Assessed Taxable Assessad Taxabla Assessed Taxable Assessied
Taxpayer Type of Business Valua Rank Vaka (1)) Valua Hank Value

Farmington Woads, L Apartment Complex $ 2,498,340 i 3.14%
Dawsonvilla Fea Ownar, LLG Shopplng Center Gwnar 2,307,249 2 2.80%
Atlanta Motorsports Park, LLC Motarsports Park 1,613,027 3 2.03%
Gold Creak Foods, LC Poultry Procassing 1,584,077 5 1.99% 2118427 1 8.12%
SCC Villas, LLG Southern Cathofie Cellege Borms 1,243,818 4 1.56%
Vindstream Standard, Ina, Publie Glify 933,319 7 1.67%
EHK Investments, LLC Family Cwned Real Eslate 872,279 8 1.10%
Starmount Propertiss Ine. Aparlmani Complax 764,164 g 0.96% 773,460 8 1.88%
Meadow Tracs, Ine, Resldentlal Davelopment 674,004 10 0.85%
Phoenlx Ona, LLG Residential Davelopment 1,996,976 2 4.83%
Standard Telephona Co, Puble Uity 1,323,818 3 3.20%
Springlaks, LLC Rasidential Development 1,320,860 4 3.19%
Iaple Streat Davelopmant, LLG Resldantial Devalopment 1,238,428 5 2.83%
Howser Mill, LLG Rasldantlat Development 1,167,227 8 2.80%
Burts Crossing Gonstruciion Resldantlal Development 884,162 7 2.14%
RBM Capital, LLC Resldentlal Davelopment 701,908 9 1.70%
Classic Homes of Dawson Ine, Restdential Development 697 442 10 1.69%

Tolals 12,490,275 15.71% 12,219,704 20.54%

Source; Dawsen Gounly Tax Commisslonar

Naote: Tha City of Dawsonvifie does not lavy property tax. Rank Is based on the amount of County maintenance & apsrations laxes biled since axemptlons thal reduce the assessed valua

can vary by enlity.

{1} Percentages ara based on ha Chy's gross {ax digestof $79,511,706 Jor calendar year 2044, and $41,362,762 for calendar year 2065,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
DIRECT AND QVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
GENERAL GBLIGATION AND REVENUE BONDS
Juna 30, 2014

Estimated Estimated Share of
Governmental Unit : : Debt Quistanding  Percentage Available Overlapping Debt
City of Dawsonville Diract Debt
Intergovernmental Contractual Obligations $ 1,442,828 100% $ 1,442,828
Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds 4,675,000 100% 4,675,000
Total Direct 6,117,828 6,117,828
Overlapping Debt:
Dawson County Board of Commissioners 19,352,000 6.13% 1,186,278
Dawscn County School System 9,900,000 6.13% 606,870
Total Overlapping Debt 29,252,000 1,793,148
Total $ 35,369,828 $ 7,910,976

Source: Direct debt outstanding provided by the City as of June 30, 2014, as represented in current financial
statements. Overlapping debt outstanding data as per reported in the Dawson County CAFR for

December 31, 2013,

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic

boundarles of the Cily. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the Cily. This proces recognizes that, when
considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the

residents and businesses should be taken inte account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is

a resident.

The percentagse of overiapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed properiy values,

Applicable percentages were astimated by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value

that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the cotnty total taxable assessed valus.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
WATER, SEWER & GARBAGE FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Public Utilities Revenue Bonds & Pledged Municipal Loans

Less Net

Fiscal Operating Operating Available Daebt Service

Year Revenue (1} Expehses (2 Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2014 1,208,802 734,280 474,522 170,715 296,608 1.02
2013 1,125,951 719,778 406,163 118,017 208,528 0.76
2012 966,455 710,484 255,971 111,661 213,678 0.79
2011 979,885 836,095 143,790 107,928 217,410 0.44
2010 1,002,147 868,042 134,105 99,025 226,311 0.4
2009 @) 467,854 439,860 27,994 49,905 112,764 0.17
2008 1,224,482 805,842 418,640 96,362 214,166 1.35
2007 1,473,827 768,370 705,457 55,603 64,468 5.88
2006 1,158,908 536,416 622,493 31,355 65,943 6.40
2005 779,244 525,663 253,581 29,927 86,794 2.17

{1) Totat operating revenua ineluding Interest.

(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreclation,

(3} Tha City converled to a June 30 fiscal year end in 2009; consequently financial reporting Is presented for the slx menth
perlod ending June 30, 2003,
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
TAX SUPPORTED DEBT RATIOS

June 30, 2014
Direct Tax Overlapping Tax Overall Tax
Supported Supported Supported
Debt Debt Debt ()
Per Capita Debt 2 S 2,412 5 707 S 3,119
Percentage of Gross Tax Digest (3 7.69% 2.26% 9.95%
Percentage of Direct Fair Market Value (4 3.15% 0.92% 4.07%
Per Capita Debt as Percentage of Per 6.75% 1.98% 8.72%

Capita Income 5

Nota: This scheduls is provided to comply with ongoing debt covenant requirements.

{1) Direct and overlapping debt [s shown in total on pags 70,

(2} Based on 2014 Cily of Dawsonville pepulation of 2,636, sea pags 74.

{3) Basedon 2014 Gross Tax Digest of $79,511,708, see page 65.

{4} Based on 2014 estimated aciual value of $194,424,733, see page 65.

(5} Based on 2014 estimated per capita income figure for Dawson County of $35,760, see page 74.
(6) Based on amount of avarlapping debt applicable 1o City of Dawsonbilla taxable preperty.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
Las! Ten Fiscal Years

Estimated City of

Flscal Population Population Dawsonville Dawson Co. Per Dawson County
Year Dawson City of Personal Capila Personal Unamployment
Ended County Dawsonville Income (5) Income (3) Rate (1)
2014 (@ 22,330 2,536 90,686,112 35,760 (4) 5.8%
2013 22,686 2,466 86,708,895 35,162 () B.7%
2012 22,422 2,294 79,312,756 34,574 7.7%
2011 22,459 2,319 76,935,144 33,176 9.0%
2010 22,330 2,390 75,014,930 31,387 9.8%
2009 22,555 1,617 55,349,910 34,230 9.8%
2008 22,006 1,677 52,421,057 33,241 5.9%
2007 21,484 1,407 45,638,859 32,437 3.8%
2006 20,643 1,231 36,849,985 29,935 3.8%
2005 19,731 1,131 33,339,618 29,478 4,2%

Data Sources: U.S. Census Bureau, Unless olhenwise noted,

{f} Data provided through the Georgla Department of Labor,

{2} U.S. Census population data for 2014 not available; information shown is estimate provided by Suburban Stats demographics.

{3} Data provided threugh Federal Reserve Economic Data and U.S. Bureau of Economle Analysis,

{4) Current per capita data unavailabls. Calculated estimate by applying to the preceeding year the compound annual growth rate
realized for 2002-2012 of 1.7% per Federal Beseive Economic Data,

(6) Personal Income figures specifically for the City are not avallable. Calculated estimate by multiplying county per capila rate
by City population.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2014 2005
Percentags of Gity Percentags of City
Taxpaysr Employess Rank Employment Employass Hank Employment

Gold Creek Foods, (C 580 1 37.94% 130 3 12.88%
Dawson Counly Board of Commissioners 256 2 16.46% 215 2 21.31%
Dawson County Board of Education (1) 248 3 15.95% 308 1 30.53%
food Lion Sotre # 2132 40 5 2.57%

Atllanta Motor Spords Park LLG 30 4 1.93%

Bojangles Restaurant 25 7 1.61%

Daley Queen of Dawsonville 18 8 1.16% i5 7 1.48%
United Community Bank 13 9 4.02% 29 5 2.08%
Amlcalola Propane, Inc. 12 10 0.77%

Kangaroo Store # 3318 10 10 0.99%
Southern Catholic College 24 4 2.38%
Davis Machine Inc. 18 6 1.78%
Ploneer Marketing Research Inc. 14 8 1.39%
Southem Foodservice Management 1 2 1.09%
Fred's Store # 1450 10 10 0.89%
All Others 323 20.77% 233 23.09%

Tolals 1,555 103.19% 1,008 100.00%

Source: Employment dala based on business ficense applications and phone surveys.

(1) Representedin tha employment figures presented are employess of the BOE offices, Dawson Counly High School, Dawson Counly Middie
Schoe!, Robinson Efementary and Hightower Academy.
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

Last Six Flscal Years

Function 2014 2013 2012 2011 2016 2009 (1
General Government:

Number of accounts payable

checks issued 730 656 554 1,004 1,067 477

Number of payroll checks issuad 286 290 278 273 280 169
Highways and streets

Miles of streets maintained 10.87 10.87 10.08 10.07 10.07 10.07

Miles of sidewaiks maintained 5.93 570 5.52 5.09 4,80 4.43
Water System

Number of service connections 1,250 1,118 1,131 1,096 1,135 1,023

Daily avergae consumption in gallons 190,688 187,002 294,304 194,215 183,486 102,630
Sewer System

Number of service connections 1,075 941 934 904 946 839

Daily average tratment in gallons 176,698 166,530 270,731 172,218 160,841 73,851

Source: Various Gity departments,

(1) The Gity converted 1o a Juna 30 fiscal year end In 2008; consequsntly financlal reporting Is presented for the six month perled ending Juna 30, 2009, -

(2) Comparative informatlon prior to the short-year ending 6/30/2209 is not available.
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ALEXANDER ALMAND & BANGS, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 1, 2014

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Council
Clty of Dawsonville
Dawsonville, Georgia

Wae have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial staternents of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remalning fund information of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2014, and the related notes fo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Dawsonville, Georgia’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Dawsonville, Georgia's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned funciions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controf that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal controf that we consider to be
material weaknesses. Howsver, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Dawsonville, Georgia's financial statements are fres
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of cur tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other maiters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entily's internat control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity's internal control and compiiance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&LQMV\/("’:, CL@»\/\Q%}? gJ}Z

Alexander, Almand & Bangs, LLP
Gainesville, Georgia
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CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPECIAL LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS CONSTRUCTED WITH SPECIAL SALES TAX PROCEEDS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PROJECT TO DATE
From Inception Through June 30, 2014

Current Prior Year
Originat Project Project Current Percent Fund
Profect Budget Budget to Date Year Total Complete Balance
Sidewalk Project $ 500,000 $ 508,190 $ 490,086 $ 7.340 $ 497,428 97.88% $ 10,764

Reconciiation to Capital Projects Fund:

Total Expenditures - Capitat Projects Fund $ 23,944

LMIG Grant Expenditures (16,604)
SPLOST Expenditures - current year $ 7340
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